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TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U51109WB1983PTC036510
31 Shakespeare Sarani, Jasmine Tower, i Floor,
Suit No- 213 & 214, Kolkata-700017
E-mail id: info@tarsons.in

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To The Members of
TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

The Directors take pleasure in presenting the 36" Annual Report together with the Audited Statements
of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2019.

The company is engaged in manufacturing of Plastic labware, lab consumerables and supply of plastic
products to health care and pharmaceutical industry.

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The summarized standalone results of your Company are:

(Amount)’
Particulars Financial Year ended
' ~ Standalone

31/03/2019 31/03/2018
Profit/(loss) before Tax (PBT) 56,63,96,534 31,77,77,359

16,76,86,148
Tax Adjustments 12,85,69,486

7 7

Net Profit/(Loss) After Tax (PAT) 39,82,10,56 18,92,07,513
Profit/(Loss) brought forward from previous year 94,70,96,600 75,78,89,088
Appropriations ‘ - -
Profit/(Loss) carried to Balance Sheet 134,58,06,986 94,70,96,600

**previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.
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2. DIVIDEND
The directors do not recommend dividend in respect of equity shares for the financial year 2018-19.

3. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no dividend
declared and paid last year.

4. AMOUNTS TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES

The Board of Directors have decided to retain the entire amount of profits for FY 2018-19 in the profit
and loss account.

5. NO CHANGE IN BUSINESS

There is no change in the nature of business during the year under review.

6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT

No material changes and commitments have occurred after the close of the year till the date of this
Report, which affect the financial position of the Company.

7. SHARE CAPITAL

As on 31% March, 2019, the issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of your Company stood as
under:

Particulars | § A | Amount (')
Authorised Capital(Féce value of 10 each) Z | 1,15,00,000
Issued Capital(Face value of '10 each) 19,22,280
Subscribed and Paid up Capital(Face value of '10 each) 19,22,280

7.1.1 Equity Shares/Preference Shares/ Debentures

The Company has not allotted Equity Shares and Preference Shares during the year under review.
However the company has issued 22,00,000 (Twenty Two Lakh) Compulsorily Convertible Debentures
of face value of Rs. 100/- each (also referred to as “CCDs”) carrying an interest rate of 13.5% per




7.2 Deposits
The company has not accepted any public deposit during the period within the meaning of section 73
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. The Company

was not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education Protection Fund.

8. Business Overview

The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and trading of plastic laboratory products and certain
scientific equipments. The products find usage in laboratories engaged in research on molecular
biology, cell culture, genomics, proteonomics, immunology etc.

Amount ()
Financial Year Turnover from Sale of Products ~ Profit After Tax i
2016-2017 1,36,59,19,061.00 18,64,83,645.00
2017-2018 1,46,83,68,540.00 ! 18,92.07.513.00
2018-2019 1,83,09,79,100.00 [ 39,87,10,387.00

9. RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Company has a comprehensive Risk Management framework that seeks to minimise adverse
impact on business objectives and capitalise on opportunities. Our success as an organisation depends
on the ability to identify such opportunities and leverage them while mitigating the risks that arise
while conducting our business. The Company has implemented a mechanism for risk management and
formulated a Risk Management Policy. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are
systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. The Company has set up a
Risk Management Committee which is chaired by Mr Sanjive Sehgal, to monitor the risks and their
mitigating actions as well as formulating strategies towards identifying new and emergent risks.

10. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
During the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the
design or operation was observed.

11.HOLDING AND SUBSIDIARIES

Name of the Company Nature of Association Datéﬁf Association Date of discontinuation
of Association

NIL
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12. ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars relating to energy conservation, technology absorption as required to be disclosed
under section 134(3) (m) of the Companies act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the company.

Details of foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as required to be disclosed under section 134(3)(m) of
the Companies act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given
hereunder:-

Foreign Exchange Earnings '50,81,36,074 (Previous Year:  38,22,97,238)

Foreign Exchange Outgo
C.I.F. Value of Imports '61,44,21,922 (Previous Year: ~ 42,20,48,936)

Other Foreign Expenditure "18,6,75,156 (Previous Year: 1,47,37,569)

13. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

13.1 Appointment of Directors

1.Mr. Suresh Prabala was appointed by the Board as the Nominee Director of Clear Vision
Investment Holdings Pte. Limited on 26" July, 2018 and his appointment was regularised by the
shareholders on 27" July, 2018;

2.Mr. Manoj Sehrawat was appointed as the Nominee Director of Clear Vision Investment Holdings
Pte. Limited on 26" July, 2018 by the board of the company and his appointment was
regularised by the shareholders on 27" July, 2018;

3. Mr. Sanjive Sehgal was appointed as the Managing Director of the Company on 26" July, 2018 by
the board of the company;

4.Mr. Rohan Sehgal was appointed as the Whole Time Director of the Company on 26" July, 2018
by the board of the company;

5. Mr. Ashok Kumar Duggar was appointed in the Board Meeting as the Additional Director of the
Company on 26" July, 2018 and was regularized as the Director in the AGM of the Company
held on 28.09.2018;

6.Mr. Viresh Oberai was appointed as the Independent Director of the Company on 20"
November, 2018.

13.2 Directors Resigned/ Retired during the year
Mr. Sachin Sehgal rendered his resignation as the Director of the Company on 26" July, 2018.
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14. DETAILS OF BOARD MEETINGS

02-04-2018 . | 3 e 3 3
05-04-2018
20-06-2018
04-07-2018
11-07-2018
21-07-2018
24-07-2018
25-07-2018
26-07-2018
16-08-2018
20-11-2018
01-03-2019

Datei: | | T" Board Strength __ No of Directors Present

OO lwWw W w w|w w|w
L iplWW W WWIW W W

The Board Meetings are in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standards issued
by Companies Secretaries of India.

There were two General Meetings held on 27.07.2018 and 20.11.2018. Annual General Meeting was
held on 28" day of September,2018.

15. AUDITORS
15.1 Statutory Auditors

In the AGM held on 28.09.2018, M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
(FRNO12754N/N500016), Chartered Accountants with FRN 012754N were appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company for a period of five years from Financial Year 2018 - 19 to Financial Year 2022
- 2023. |

Further, the report of the Statutory Auditors along with notes to Schedules is enclosed to this report.
The observations made in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any

further comments.

16. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and rule 12(1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, extract of annual return in Form MGT-9 is annexed
herewith as Annexure |. E
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17. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, INVESTMENTS AND GUARANTEES UNDER SECTION 186
The Company has not madé any loans, investments and guarantees during the Financial Year.

18. REPORT ON SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

19. VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY

As required under Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under,
your Company has adopted a vigil mechanism policy for all employees of the Company including
Directors and Senior Management Executives, which lays down the principles and standards that
should govern the actions of the Company and its employees. Any actual or potential violation of the
Code, howsoever insignificant or perceived as such, would be a matter of serious concern for the
Company. This Vigil Mechanism shall provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons
who use such mechanism.

In the absence of Audit Committee, Mr. Sanjive Sehgal (DIN: 00787232), Director of the company has

been nominated for the purpose of Vigil mechanism to whom other directors and employees may
report their concerns.

20. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As required under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the financial year 2018-19, your
Company needs to spent to spend an amount of Rs. 60,52,210 (Rupees Sixty Lakhs Fifty Two Thousand
Two Hundred Ten Only. The company recognizes its social responsibility towards promoting education,
healthcare and upliftment of poor.

The CSR Committee of your Company has formulated the CSR Policy which describes the broad areas
around which the CSR activities of your Company are positioned being health, education and
upliftment of poor as per Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013 as may be identified by the CSR
Committee from time to time.

During this year, your Company spent an aggregate amount of to spend an amount of Rs. 55,68,494/-
(Rupees Fifty Five Lakhs Sixty Eight Thousand Four Hundred Ninety Four Only) towards CSR activities
pursuant to CSR Policy of your Company. The manner in which the CSR amount was spent during the
financial year is set out as an annexure to the Directors’ Report and forms part of this Annual Report.

An amount of Rs 4,83,716/- remains unspent in the financial year however the same has been spent on

23" day of September, 2019.
‘ Mi %‘ 6



The annual report on our CSR activities is appended as Annexure |l to the Board’s Report.

21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Section 188(1) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Companies [Meetings of Board and Its
Powers] Rules, 2014 all contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the
financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis.
During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract / arrangement / transaction with
related parties which could be considered material in accordance with the policy of the Company on
materiality of related party transactions. Your Directors draw attention of the members to Note 37 to
the financial statements.

22. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

No significant material orders have been passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which would
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

23. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013,
your Directors confirm that:

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period;

(c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting

records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) The company being an unlisted company the provisions of section 134(3)(e) of the Companies Act,
2013 pertaining to laying of internal financial controls is not applicable to the company.

(f) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.



24. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors also gratefully acknowledge all stakeholders of the Company viz. customers, members,
dealers, vendors, banks, government authorities and other business partners for the excellent support
received from them during the year. The Directors place on record their sincere appreciation to all
employees of the Company for their unstinted commitment and continued contribution to the
Company. |

FOR TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

SANJIVE SEHGAL
(DIRECTOR)
(DIN: 00787232)

\m

ROHAN SEHGAL
(DIRECTOR)
(DIN: 06963013)

DATE : 30™ DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2019
PLACE : KOLKATA




Annexure |

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31" March, 2019
of
TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
[Pursuant to Section 92(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

CIN U51109WB1983PTC036510

Registration Date 05/07/1983

Name of the Company TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Category / Sub-Category of the Company limited by shares

Company R

Address of the Registered Office and | 31, Shakespeare Sarani, Jasmine Tower, 2nd Floor ,
contact details v | Suit No- 213/214,Kolkata-700017

Whether listed company B By

Name, Address and contact details of Not Applicable

Registrar & Transfer Agents (RTA), if any

. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company are
stated below:-

Sl. No. Name and Description ] NIC Code of the % to total turnover
of main products / services | Product/ service | of the company
3. Plastic Products saal o 92.07%
2. Instruments 2651 7.93%

1. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

—r—

NAME AND

st CIN/GLN i HOLDING/ % OF | APPLICABLE
Nd ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY . SUBSIDIARY/ | SHARES | SECTION
| ASSOCIATE HELD
o Tt SRS N




Iv. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the
beginning of the year
[As on 1-April-2018]

Demat | Physical [ Total % of Demat
Total
| Shares |
A. Promoters =
(1) Indian
(a) Individual/HUF 192228 192228 | 100% 98037
(b)Central Govt |
(c)State Govt (s) !
(d)Bodies Corp. Nil { zhi Nil Nil
(e) Banks / FI i
(f)Any Other.... i
|
|
Sub-total (A) (1):- | 192228 192228 100% 98037
| |
| |
&2) Foreign |
a) NRls - '
Individuals
(b) Other - Nil Nil Nil Nil
Individuals
(c) Bodies Corp. Nil Nil Nil | Nil
(d) Banks / FI '
(e) Any Other.... ! 1
i i
Sub-total (A) (2):- Nil | NIl | Nl 94191
Total ‘
shareholding of ( '
Promoter (A) = 192228 | 192228 | 100% l 192228 |

No. of Shares held at the %
end of the year Chan
[As on 31-March-2019]
Physi | Total % of
cal Total durin
Shares
the
year
98037 51% 49%
Nil Nil Nil
98037 51% 49%
Nil Nil Nil
94191 49% 100%
B
i 94191 49% 100%
|
192228 | 100% 100%




(A)(1)+(A)(2)

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions
(a) Mutual Funds
(b) Banks / Fl
(c) Central Govt
(d) State Govt(s)
(e) Venture Capital
unds
f) Insurance
Companies
(g) Flls
(h) Foreign Venture
Capital
Funds
(i) Others (specify)
Sub-total (B)(1):-

2.Non-Institutions
(a)Bodies Corp.

(i) Indian

(ii) Overseas

(b) Individuals

(i) Individual

shareholders
."nolding nominal

share capital upto Rs.
1 lakh

(ii) Individual
shareholders
holding
share

capital in excess of
Rs. 1 lakh
(c)Others (specify)

nominal

Sub-total (B)(2):-
Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil




C. Shares held by
Custodian for Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
GDRs & ADRs |
Grand Total
(A+B+C) 192228 | 192228 | 100% | 192228 | 192228 | 100% | Nil
(ii) Shareholding of Promoters
Sl Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning | Share holding at the end of the | % change
No. Name of the year year In share
holding
during
the year
. No.of | % of %0f No.of | % of % of
Shares | total shares | Shares | total Shares
Shares Pledged Shares Pledged /
of the / of the encumbe
company ::::mb company | red
to total to total
, Sheios shares
1 |VINOD KR. SEHGAL | 4841 | 2.52% Nil | Nil Nil Nil 100%
2 JYOTI SEHGAL 7262 3.78% Nil Nil Nil Nil 100%
3 SANJIVE SEHGAL 32500 16.91% Nil 32500 16.91% Nil Nil
KARTA ,
S.K.SEHGAL &
SONS HUF
WPTe . | lyeeerammn b msgmos : - ~
4 V.K.SEHGAL & 33000 1737%: ] Nil Nil Nil Nil 100%
SONS HUF
. b SANJIVE SEHGAL 21578 11.23% Nil 23601 12.27% Nil 9%
6 SACHIN SEHGAL 48387 25.17% Nil Nil Nil Nil 100%
74 POOJA SEHGAL 2524 1.31% Nil Nil Nil Nil 100%
8 | ROHANSEHGAL | 41936 | 21.82% | Nil | 41936 | 21.82% Nil NIL
9 NEETA ARORA 100 | 0.05% E Nil | Nil Nil Nil 100%
10 | SHALOO MEHRA | 100 = 0.05% Nil [ Nil Nil Nil 100%
1 i | CLEARVISION | NIl Nil Nil T94191 49% Nil 100%
INVESTMENT - i |
HOLDINGS PTE. | '
LIMITED




iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding: According to the Share Purchase And Subscription
Agreement dated 4" day of July, 2018 pursuant to which Clear Vision Investment Holdings Pte.
Limited is now holding 49% stake in the Equity of the company.

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRs)L;

SI. | For Each of the Top  Shareholding at the beginning | Shareholding at the end
No. | 10Shareholders = oftheyear ' of the year
| No. of shares % of total | No. of shares % of total shares
i shares of the of
| company the company
Nil

(v). Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. | For Each of the Directors and KMP Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year
No. of ! % of total No. of % of total
shares | shares of the shares | shares of the
(s JEsE - | ~_company company
1. | Sanjive Sehgal 21578 | 11.23% 21578 11.23%
Date wise Increase/Decrease in i
Shareholding during the year 26-07-2018 26-07-2018
Specifying the reasons for Increase 2023 : 1.05% 2023 1.05%
/decrease (e.g. allotment /transfer | (Increase) | (Increase)
/bonus/sweat equity, etc.): ‘
At the end of the year 23601 |  12.27% 23601 12.27%
2. | Sachin Sehgal . 48387 25.17% 48387 25.17%
Date wise Increase/Decrease in 26-07-2018 |
Shareholding during the year | (48387) | 26-07-2018
specifying the reasons for Increase | (Decrease) 25.17% (48387) 25.17%
/decrease (e.g. Allotment/transfer 1 Transfer of (Decrease)
/bonus/sweat equity, etc.): | Shares | | Transfer of
‘ Shares
At the end of the year l NIL NIL NIL NIL
3. | Rohan Sehgal _ 41936 |  21.82% 41936 21.82%

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for Nil Nil Nil Nil
Increase/decrease (e.g. Allotment
/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc) het |
At the end of the year 41936

21.82% 41936 21.82%
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Ashok Kumar Duggar

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
Increase/decrease (e.g. Allotment
Jtransfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

|

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

At the end of the year

Suresh Prabhala

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
Increase/decrease (e.g. Allotment
/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

At the end of the year

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Manoj Sehrawat

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
Increase/decrease (e.g. Allotment
/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

At the end of the year

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Viresh Oberai

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
Increase/decrease (e.g. Allotment
/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

At the end of the year

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil
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M INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for

payment:
Particulars | Secured Loans | Unsecured Total
: Deposi
‘excluding | Loans ts Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the
beginning of the financial
year
I
i) Principal Amount 53,53,43,524 | 9,76,19,315 NIL 73,29,62,839
. she i ot
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not | 31,51,970 | 2,14,85,391 : 2,46,37,361
due .
Total (i+ii+iii) 53,84,95,494 | 21,91,04,706 | NIL | 75,76,00,200
During the financial year 1 =
* Addition 21378,85,302 | 2276,22,625 NIL | 23655,07,927

122594,06,030.98 | 2267,27,331 NIL 24861,33,361.98
¢ Reduction

Net Change
- 8,95,294 -

et oo S TRIS R0 TIRGR It | 1206,25,434.98
Indebtedness at the end of
the financial year L TR 3 s i
i) Principal Amount 4169,74,765 2200,00,000 NIL 6369,74,765
i) Interest due but not paid | RS
iii) Interest accrued but not 271,95051 2 105,56,53'4 - 130,46,585

due

Total (i+ii+iii) 4194,64,816 | 2305,56,534 NIL 6500,21,350




VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
Sl. | Particulars of Sachin Sehgal Sanjive Sehgal Rohan Sehgal Total
No. | Remuneration Director Managing Whole Time Amount
Director Director
1 Gross salary 48,00,000.00 279,99,664.00 128,00,000.00 455,99,664.00
(a) Salary as per Nil Nil
provisions contained | Nil Nil
in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act,
1961
(b) Value of 13,200 39,600 39,600 92,400
perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act,
1961
(c) Profits in lieu of
salary under i
2. | Stock Option Nil Nil Nil Nil
3. | Sweat Equity ' Nil Nil Nil Nil
4, . Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5. Others, please Nil Nil Nil Nil
specify
Total (A) 48,13,200 280,39,264 128,39,600 456,92,064
Ceiling as per the Nil Nil Nil Nil
Act

B. Remuneration to other directors: Sitting fees of Rs 3,16,667/- is paid to Mr Viresh Oberoi the
Independent director of the company.

VII.

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER/WTD

Not Applicable

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: There are no pending penalties,
punishments, compounding of offences for year ending 31°' March, 2019.




ii)

ANNEXUERE-II

Annual Repo‘r;‘ on‘.Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities for the financial year 2018-19:

The Company has its CSR Policy within broad scope laid down in Schedule VII of the Companies
Act, 2013.

The Composition of the CSR Committee:
Mr. Sanjive Sehgal, Director (DIN:00787232)
Mr. Rohan Sehgal, Director (DIN: 06963013)

Mr. Ashok Kumar Duggar (DIN: 08186964)

Average net profit of the Company for the last three financial years:

The average net profit as per Sec 198 of the Companies Act,2013 for the last three financial
years is Rs. 30.26 Crores.

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount mentioned in item 3 above):

The Company is required to spend Rs. 60,52,210 (Rupees Sixty Lakhs Fifty Two Thousand Two
Hundred Ten Only) towards CSR for the financial year 2018-19.

Details of CSR spent during the financial year:
Total amount to be spent for the financial year : Rs. 55,68,494
Amount unspent, if any : Rs 4,83,716/-

However the unspent amount of Rs 4,83,716/- has been spent on P day of September, 2019.




&

ii) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year : Details given below

SI. | CSR Sector in | Projects or | Amount Amount Cumulative | Amoun
No. Project | which the | programmes outlay spent on the | expenditure |t spent
or project is | 1) Local area or | (budget) projects or | upto the | Direct
activity | covered other project or | programs reporting or
2) Specify the | programs Sub-heads: | period throug
state and | wise 1) Direct h
district where expendit implem
the project or ure on enting
program was projects Agency
undertaken or
programs
~ [2) Overheads
1 Tata Medical Donation Rs. Rs. Rs. Direct
Medical | (Infrastructure towards 55,68,494 55,68,494 55,68,494
Centre | Development Development
of the Hospital | and Expansion of
Building of Head & Neck
Tata Medical Department
Centre)
74 Tata Medical Donation Rs. Rs. Rs. Direct
Medical | (Infrastructure towards .83 T16X* ) -4 BRI FI6%ET G 23 F16%"
Centre | Development Development
of the Hospital | and Expansion of
Building of Head & Neck
Tata Medical Department
i5h Centre) | 47
Total .r Rs. Rs. Rs. Direct
| 60,52,210 1 60,52,210 60,52,210

**However the unspent amount of Rs 4,83,716/- has been spent on 23 day of September, 2019.

6. Responsibility Statement:
The Responsibility Statement of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board of
Directors of the Company is reproduced below:
The implementation and monitoring of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy, is in
compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

Mr. Sanjive Sehgal
Chairman of CSR Committee
(DIN: 00787232)

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30" Day of September, 2019



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Tarsons Products Private Limited

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tarsons Products Private Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statement
of Profit and Loss and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2019 and profit and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

4.

The financial statements of the Company for the vear ended March 31, 2018 were audited by
another firm of chartered accountants under the Act who, vide their report dated July 11, 2018,
expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. In this regard we draw
reference to Note 42 to the financial statements regarding classification/grouping of certain
financial statements line items in the prior years. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Other Information

O

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

6.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of
Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

8.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

10.

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.
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12. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

()

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure A”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements — Refer Note 38(i)(a) to the financial
statements.

ii.  The Company has long-term contracts as at March 31, 2019, for which there were
no material foreseeable losses. The Company did not have any derivative contracts
as at March 31, 2019.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31,
2019.

iv.  The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to
the Company for the vear ended March 31, 2019.
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13. The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public
companies. Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the
Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accountants

R VAV N S

Dhiraj Kumar

Partner
Kolkata Membership Number: 060466
September 30, 2019 UDIN: 19060466AAAACW9700
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Tarsons
Products Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2,

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company'’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accountants

(ﬁ;&ww

Dhiraj Kumar
Partner

Kolkata Membership Number: 060466
September 30, 2019 UDIN: 19060466AAAACW9700



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Tarsons Products Private Limited on the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019

Page 10f 3

iv.

vi.

vii.

(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during
the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us,
the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are
freehold, as disclosed in Note 12A on Tangible Assets to the Financial Statements, are held
in the name of the Company as at the Balance Sheet date. In respect of immovable
properties of self-constructed buildings on leasehold land which are disclosed as fixed
assets in the financial statements, the land lease agreement is in the name of the Company,
where the Company is the lessee in the agreement.

The physical verification of inventory (excluding stocks with third parties) have been conducted
at reasonable intervals by the Management during the year. In respect of inventory lying with
third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed on
physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order
are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect
of the loans and investments made, and guarantees and security provided by it.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73,
74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax and
goods and service tax, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities. Also, refer Note 38(i)(b) to the Financial Statements regarding
management’s assertion on certain matters relating to provident fund.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales-tax, duty of customs, value added
tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of dues of
service-tax and duty of excise as at March 31, 2019 which have not been deposited on
account of a dispute are as follows:

viil.

xi.

Name of the Nature of Amount Pe:ﬁgi::;;ﬁi‘:h Forum where the
statute dues (Rs.) dispute is pending
relates
Deputy
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax | 5,261,586 a4l o Commissioner of
2014-15 :
Service Tax
: Additional
?entral Excise Act, Excise Duty | 3,860,287 23(1)(1)_2 6t0 Commissioner of
944 S5 Central Excise
. The Commissioner
Central Excise Act, . 2014-15
1944 Excise Duty | 2,717,274 to 2016-17 (Appeals E);() CGST &
Central Excise Act 2016-17 The Commissioner
1944 Excise Duty 748,537 to 2017-18 (Appeals Ej;() CGST &

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial
institution or bank or Government or dues to debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer and further public offer
(including debt instruments). In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the moneys raised by way of term loans have been applied, on an
overall basis, for the purposes for which they were obtained.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public
companies. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company. Also refer paragraph 13 of our main audit report.
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xii.  As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii. =~ The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under Accounting Standard (AS) 18, Related
Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not required
to constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act, and accordingly, to this extent,
the provisions of Clause 3(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

' Xiv. The Company has made a preferential allotment/private placement of fully compulsorily
convertible debentures during the year under review, in compliance with the requirements of
Section 42 of the Act. According to the information and explanation provided to us and the
records of the Company examined by us, the amounts raised have been used for the purpose
for which funds were raised.

xv.  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

xvi.  The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
. Chartered Accountants

%(MWW

Dhiraj Kumar

Partner
Kolkata Membership Number: 060466
September 30, 2019 UDIN: 19060466AAAACWQ700




TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019

\

A. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1. Shareholders' Funds
a) Share Capital
b) Reserves and Surplus

2. Non Current Liabilities
a) Long Term Borrowings
b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
c) Other Long Term Liabilities

3. Current Liabilities
a) Short Term Borrowings

b) Trade Payables
- Total Outstanding Dues of Micro
Enterprises and Small Enterprises; and

- Total Qutstanding Dues of Creditors
other than Micro Enterprises and Small
Enterprises

c) Other Current Liabilities
d) Short Term Provisions

TOTAL :

B. ASSETS
1. Non Current Assets
a) Property, Plant & Equipment (Refer Note 42)
Tangible Assets
Capital Work in Progress

b) Non Current investments
¢) Long Term Loans and Advances
d) Other Non Current Assets

2. Current Assets
a) Inventories
b) Trade Receivables
c) Cash and Bank Balances
d) Short Term Loans and Advances (Refer Note 42)
e) Other Current Assets (Refer Note 42)

TOTAL :

Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number 012754N/N500016
c red Accountants

LA V-

Dhiraj Kumar
Partner

Membership No.: 060466

Kolkata
September 30, 2019

Notes

10
"

12(A)
12(B)

13
14
15

16
17
18
19

e Sehgal
Director
DIN: 00787232

Kolkata
September 30, 2019

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

1,922,280 1,922,280
1,369,144,707 970,434,320
1,371,066,987 972,356,600

186,929,941 256,259 465
41,531,345 39,661,717
625,000 702,388
229,086,286 296,623,570
355,280,291 180,881,399
39,020,327 47,225,847
129,706,542 343,153,245
8,231,958 7,556,252
532,239,118 578,816,743
2,132,392,291 1,847,796,913
849,529,695 790,476,878
105,420,194 -
177,064,257 150,387,814

3,323,000 -

1,135,337,146 940,864,692
435,575,173 385,330,336
498,314,883 455,151,178

8,298,474 16,314,790

33,999,252 44,737,135
20,867,463 5,398,782
997,055,245 906,932,221
2,132,392,391 1,847,796,913
Roban Sehgal
DIN: 06963013



TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2018

A. INCOME
a. Revenue from Operations (Gross) (Refer Note 42)
Less: Excise Duty
Revenue from Operations (Net)
b. Other Operating Revenue (Refer Note 42)
c. Other income

Total Revenue
B. EXPENDITURE

a. Cost of Materials Consumed
b. Purchases of Stock in Trade

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress ,Traded Goods
and Scrap. (Refer Note 42)

d. Employee Benefits Expense

e. Finance Cost

-

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

g. Other Expenses (Refer Note 42)
Total Expenses

C. Profit Before Tax

D. Tax Expenses
Current Tax
Deferred Tax

E. Profit for the Year

F. Earnings per Equity Share

[Nominal Value per Share: Rs.10/- (Previous year: Rs10/-)]
‘Basic
Diluted

Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number 012754N/N500016

Chartered Accountants

ML\WV\F

Dhiraj Kumar
Partner

Membership No.: 060466

Kolkata
September 30, 2019

Notes

21

21
22

23
24

25

26

28
29

30

33
33

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2018

1,885,932,196

1,487,149,605

- 18,781,085
1,885,932,196 1,468,368 540
: 14,267 566
15,570,594 10,691,865
1,901,502,790 1,493,327,971
420,409,098 321,468,172
141,499,977 132,518,828
(25,082,862) (43,941,421)
161,721,616 108,868,893
74,887,414 80,601,389
145,637,818 132,164,680
416,033,194 443,672,072

1,335,106,255 1,175,550,613
566,396,535 317,777,358
165,816,520 140,459,530
1,869,628 (11,889,684)
398,710,387 189,207,512
2,074.15 984.29
1,983.01 984 29
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
\
Sanjive Sehgal Rohan Sehgal
Director Director

DIN: 00787232

Kolkata
September 30, 2019

DIN: 06963013



TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 566,396,535 317,777,358
Adjustments for
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 145,637,818 132,164,680
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets {195,500) -
Liability no Longer Required Written Back (2,501,776)
Provision Far Diminution in the Value of Long Term Investments . 45,051,000
Provision For Doubtful Loans & Advances - 27 506,400
Interest income (1,564,233) (1,515,193)
Finance Cost 74,887,414 80,801,339
Operating Profit before working Capital Changes 782,660,258 601,785.634
Working Capital Changes
Adjustments for:
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables, Provisions and Other Liabilities
(Long Term & Short Term) (1,408,290) 218,171,121
Decrease / (Increase) in Loans and Advances (Long Term & Short Term) 7,815,044 (70.930,709)
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Recaivables, Inventories & Other Assets
{Long Term & Short Tem) (108,688,893) (22,456,952)
Cash Generated from Operations 680,378,113 726,529,096
Less: Direct Taxes Paid (net of Refund) 170,312,143 140,459 530
Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities (A) 510,065,970 586,069,566
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Payment for purchase of Property, Plant & Equipments {339,377,237) (179,047,529)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments 2,753,614 -
Fixed Deposits (Placed) / Reahsed (Net) 3,349,335 -
Interest Received 1,007,598 1,515,193
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B) (332,266,690) (177,532,338)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 35,815,295 (328,266,081)
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (327,687,649) -
Proceeds from Compulsory Convertible Debentures 220,000,000 -
Increase /{Decrease) of Working Capital Demand Loan (45,601,108) -
Finance Cost Paid (64,992,799) (80,801,389)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities (C) (182,466,261) (409,067 ,471)
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (4,666,981) (530,240)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year (Refer Note 18 and Note 42) 9,735,455 16,485,031
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year (Refer Nole 18 and Note 42) 5,068,474 15,854,790
Cash and Cash Equivalents Comprise of:
Cash-in-Hand 99,554 299 112
Bank Balances
In Current Accounts 4,784,456 9436 343
Other Bank Balances
In Fixed Deposit Accounts (Refer Note 42) - 6,219,335
Effect of Exchange Differences on Balances with Banks in Foreign Currency 184,464 -
Total 5,068,474 15,854, 790

Notes:
(a) Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set-out in Accounting Standard.3 ‘Cash Flow Statement’ under the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended).

This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accountants

\ &j(t“ MADA
Dhiraj Kumar

Partner jive Sehgal Rohan §ehgal
Membership No.: 060466 Director Di r

DIN: 00787232 DIN: 06963013
Kolkata Kolkata

September 30, 2019 September 30, 2019
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" TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
1. Corporate Information

Tarsans Products Private Limited is a private limited company domicied in india and incorporated under the Indian Companies Act, 1856. The Company is engaged in manufacturing and selling of plastic
laboratory products and certain scientific instruments. The Company caters to both domestic and intemational markats

2_Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India under the historical cost convantion on accrual basis. These financial statements.
have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the accounting standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended), specified under section 133 and
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il (Division I) to the Companies Act, 2013 Based on
the nature of products and the time betwean the acquisition of assets for p g and their reals in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for
the purpose of current — non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confirnity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires manag to make judg d and Pt that affect the
application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and exp and the discl of g ..udmmalmeandufmpumgpmod Anhoummmara
based on the gement's best kr ige of current event and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the requiring a 't to the carmmying

amounts of assets and liabilities and perods.

2.2 Tangible Assets

Tangible Assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises of the purchase price including rmportchm-ndnorwofmmmas
and directly attributable expenses incurred to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of being operated in the manner by manag quent costs

related to an item of Property, Plant and Equipment are recognised in the carying amount of the item if the recognition criteria are met

Q‘n item of Property, Plant and Equipment s derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal The gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised in

e Statement of Profit and Loss.
Depraciation is provided on the writtan down value method over the estimated useful lives of the assets based on those specified by Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual
usage of the assets. The depreciation charge for each period 1s recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, uniess it is included in the carrying amount of any other asset The useful life, residual value
and the depreciation method are reviewaed atleast at each financial year end. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting
estimate.
Freehold land and leasehold land (perpetual lease) are not depreciated. Other leasenold lands are amontised over the period of lease

The estmated useful lives of tangible assets are as follows :

Leasehold Land 75to 99 Years
Building 30 to 80 Years
Plant and Machinery and mould 15 Years
Electricals Equipment and Fittings 10 Years
Computers 3 Years
Vehicles 8 Years

Depreciation on assets sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed during the year i1s not provided.

2.3 Capital Work in Progress

Expenditure incurred on construction of assets which are not ready for their intended use are carried at cost less impairment (if any), under Capital work-in-progress. The cost includes the purchase cost of
materiais, including import duties and non-refundable taxes, interest on borrowings used to finance the construction of the asset and any directly attributable costs of bringing an assets ready for their

2.4 Borrowing Costs

interest cost. General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of

Q‘;mwng costs include interest, other costs incurred in connection with MMng and exchange difference arising from foreign currency borrowing to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to
ne

time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
racognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.5 Impairment of

Assessmant is done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset (tangible and intangible) may be impaired. if any such i exisis, an of the r ble
amount of the asset/cash generating unit is made. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit's net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated
future cash flows expeacted to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the recoverable amount is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. The smallest identifiable group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit (CGU). An asset or CGU whose carrying
value exceads its ble amount is idered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount Assessment is also done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that
an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased. An impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the camying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had previously been recagnised




2.6 Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and are intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other
investments are classified as long term investments. Current investments are carried at cost or fair value, whichever is lower. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution is
made to recognise a decline, other than temparary, in the value af long-term investments, such reduction being determined and made for each investment individually.

Cost of investments comprises Purchase price and directly attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. If an investment is acquired, or partly acquired, by the issue of shares or
other securities, the acquisition cost is the fair value of securities issued.
7ln ories

Inventories are stated at lower of cast and net realisable value, except in case of finished goods and working in progress which is valued at net reaiisable value after deduction of gross profit margin. Cost
is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the d costs of cc and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

2.8 Foreign Currency Translation

Initial Recognition

On initial recognition, all faraign currency transactions are recorded by applying te the foreign cumency amount the exchange rate between the reparting currency and the foreign currency at the date of
the transaction.

Subsequent Recognition

As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried in terms of histoncal cast denominated in a foreign currency are reparted using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. All non-
monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in & foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting period. With respect to long-term foreign currency monetary items, the Company has adopted the following
olicy:
.:} Foreign exchange difference on account of a depreciable asset, is adjusted in the cost of the depreciable asset, which would be depreciated over the balance life of the asset
b) In other cases, the foreign exchange difference is accumulated in a Foreign Cumency Monetary Item Translation Differance Account, and amortized over the balance pariod of such long term asset/
liability.

A monetary asset or liability is termed as a long-term foreign currency monetary item, if the asset or liability is expressed in a foreign currency and has a term of 12 months or more at the date of origination
of the asset or liability.

Investment in Equity Capital and Loan to o Company reg d outside India are carried in the Balance Sheet at the rates at which transactions have been executed.

2.9 Revenue Recognition

Sale of goods: Sales are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership in the goods are transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the contract, which coincidas with the delivery of
goeds and are recognised net of trade discounts (if any), rebates, sales taxes, excise duties

2.10 Other Income
Interest: Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Income from duty drawback and other export benefit entitiements is recognised on an accrual basis and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export

2.11 Employee Benefits

Provident Fund: Contribution towards provident fund for certain employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further obligations Such benefits are classified as Defined
Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a menthly basis

Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a
lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment. of an amount based on ihe respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment. The
Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which
they anise.

Compensated absences: Leaves allowed to employees of the company are not accumulated and camed forward. Leaves allowed to workers of the company are encashed within 12 months of rendering
== service. Accordingly, this is a short term employee benefits and hence liability for the same is determined on undiscounted basis and recognised in the pericd in which service is rendered.

2.12 Current and Deferred Tax

Tax expense for the penod, comprising cumrent tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of the net profit or loss for the period. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to
the tax authorities in accordance with the taxation rules and laws.

Deferred tax is recognised for all the timing differances, subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only to the extent
that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the
tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. In situations, where the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward losses under tax laws,
all deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realised against future taxable profits. At each Balance Sheet date,
the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets, if any.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing current tax and where the deferred tax assets and the
deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same goveming taxation laws.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the axtant thera is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such
assel is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidenca to the effect that the Company will pay
normal income tax during the specified penod.




2.13 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet
date and are not discounted to its present value

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligatien arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not whally within the control of the company or a present obligation that anses from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources wiil be
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

2.13 Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the nsks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are as op ing leases. Pay made under op g leases are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss on a strasghl-line basis over the penod of the lease

2.14 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand / deposits held at call with banks and other short term deposits with oniginal maturities of three month or less.
Other bank balance includes balances and deposits with banks that are restricted for withdrawal and usage.

2.15 Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per Share: It is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Eamnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s eamings per share is the net profit for the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding dunng the period and for all
periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corespanding
change in resources.

Diluted Earnings per Share: For the purposa of caiculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the penod butable to equity and the weigt ge number of shares
outstanding during the penod is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

2.16 Segment Reporting

Bases on synergies, risk and retums associated with the business operations and in terms of Accounting standard 17, the Company is p inantly engaged in a single reporting segment. The Company

.ﬂ present primarnly operates in India and therefore analysis of geographical segment is not required.




TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
3 SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
1,150,000 (31st March, 2018 : 1,150,000)
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 11,500,000 11,500,000
11,500,000 11,500,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
192,228 (31st March, 2018 . 192,228)
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 1,922,280 1,922,280
1,922,280 1,922,280
(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period :
As at As at
Equity Shares 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
No. Value No. Value
Balances as at the beginning of the year 192,228 1,922,280 192,228 1922280
Add: Shares Issued during the year - - - -
Balances as at the end of the year 192,228 1,922,280 192,228 1,922 280

(b) Rights, Preferences and Restrictions:

Equity Shares

The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of
interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding

(c) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Equity Shares in the Company:

As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Name of Shareholder No. of Shares % Held No. of Shares Y% Held
Sachin Sehgal - - 48,387 2517
Rohan Sehgal 41,936 21.82 41,936 21.82
V. K. Sehgal & Sons HUF - - 33,000 ATlT.
S. K. Sehgal & Sons HUF 32,500 16.91 32,500 16.91
Sanjive Sehgal 23,601 12.27 21,578 11.23
Clear Vision Investment Holdings Pte Limited 94,191 49.00 - -




TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
4 RESERVES AND SURPLUS
(a) Securities Premium
There is no movement in securities premium during the current and previous year.
Balance as at the Beginning and at the End of the Year 17,482,500 17,482,500
(b) Amalgamation Reserve [Refer Note (i) below]
There is no movement in amalgamation reserve during the current and previous year.
Balance as at the Beginning and at the End of the Year 5,855,220 5,855,220
(c) Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the Beginning of the Year 947,096,600 757,889,088
Add: Profit for the year 398,710,387 188,207,512
Balance as al the End of the Year 1,345,806,987 947 096,600
Total 1,369,144,707 970,434,320

U]

Amalagamation reserve has been recorded by the Company to give effect to the scheme of amalgamation approved by Hon'ble High Court of Calcutta for
amalgamation of G R.Packsys Private Limited (Transferror Company) with the Company (Transferee Company) with effect from 1st Agril, 2012,




TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
5 LONG TERM BORROWINGS
SECURED
Term Loan (Refer Note 42)
From Banks
Rupee Loans 280,850,708 357 614,094
Less: Current Matunties of Long Term Debt (Refer Note 9) (94,422,214) (101,354,629)
186,428,494 256,250 465
From Others (Refer Note 42)
Rupee Loans 843,768 -
Less: Current Maturities of Long Term Debt (Refer Note §) (342,321) -
501,447 :
UNSECURED
From Directors
Rupee Loans 89,908,972
Less: Current Matunities of Long Term Debt (Refer Note 9) (89,908,972)
From Shareholders
Rupee Loans - 129,195,734
Less: Current Maturitias of Long Term Debt (Refer Note 9) (129,195 734)
186,929,941 256,259,465
Note:
Nature of security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings (other than debentures):
Name of Bank/
3 Repayment No of
Financial Loan Amount Instaliment Amount Security
Instituti Schedule Instaliments.
Term loan from banks are secured by way of pan passu first
Rs. Nil Equal amount of prncipal |nypothecation charge created over the:
HOFCBank- | 21t March, 2018: | Quartery | _ Total-15 it
Term loan -1 Rs.15‘000:000} (Cutstanding Nil) Rs.5,000,000 (i} Entire current assets and movable fixed assets of the
Company, both present and future. except exclusively financed
by other Banks/Financial Institutions.
Rs. 15,625,008 Equal amount of pnncipal
HDFC Bank - o IO, Total - 24 instaliments - (1) Factory land and buildings at Domjur, Kasba, Sankrail and
Termloan-z - | 18 March, 2018 | Quartady. |/, /v ing 185) Rs. 1,041,666 Office Building at Jasmine Tower. Koikata.
Rs.19,791,672) .
Term loan from banks are also secured by way of lien over
Fixed Deposits of Rs 4,000,000 and personal guarantee of Mr
nt of al
@ Ecwn_l B P Sanjive Sehgal and Mr. Rohan Sehgal.
Rs. 9.722.23 instaliments -
HDFC Bank - g Total - 18 Rs. 1,388,888
Tomioan3 | Sl 20 | Qo | ool
0%, 000) (i) One amount of principal
. | instaliment - Rs 1,111,120
Rs. 20,000,000 Equal amount of principal
K - =
Horcank” | a1st Marcn, 2018: | Quartersy (on:::aI:O F instaliments -
Rs 25,000,000) 9 Rs 1,250,000
Equal amount of principal
Rs. 17,045,452
HDFC Bank - e Tolal - 22 instaliments -
) (31st March, 2018 Quarterly
Term loan -5 Rs.21 530 908) (Outstanding 15) Rs 1,136,364
Equal amount of princiapl
HDFC Bank - (3:‘:1' N 1 artory | _ Toal-20 instaliments -
Term loan-8 Rs. 40,000 000) (Qutstanding 18) Rs 2,000,000
Equal amount of princiapl
Rs. 8,000,000
HOFC Bank - 4 Total - 20 installments -
¥ (31st March, 2018: | Quarterly y
Term loan-7 Rs. 10,000,000) (Qutstanding 16) Rs 500,000
Equal amount of principal
Rs. 8,000,000
HDFC Bank - i s Total - 20 instaliments -
s (31st March, 2018; | Quarterly i
erm loan-8 Rs 100,00 000) (Qutstanding 16) Rs 500,000
Equal amount of principal
St e (3?:1 zomo?‘og:? 8 | Quartery i 528 L o
- ’ i 1
Term loan-9 Rs 25 000 000) (Qutstanding 18) Rs 1,250,000
(i) Equal amount of principal
Rs. Nil instaliments-
:::“?:::1 (31st March, 2018 | Quartery (Gu:;‘[’::i;sm) Rs 6,000,000
Rs.11,129.170) 9 {ii) Last amount of principal
instaliment - Rs 5,129,170
(i} Equal amount of principal
Rs. 3,100,000 instaliments -
::;:IB!:::Q; (31st March, 2018 Quarterly DuI:Il:L;mLS 2) Rs 1,300,000
Rs 8300,000) ¢ 92) | (i Last amount of principal
installment - Rs 1,800,000
Rs 93114481 @ E““Tr":l:ﬁ::'f: priocet
Axis Bank - (31st March Quarterty Total - 24 Rs 6.720 000
Term loan-3 2018 Rs ‘:19 994 48 (Outstanding 14) (i) Last amount of principal
) instailment of Rs 5,754,481
(i} Equal amount of principal
Rs. 26.400,000 installments -
Axis Bank - Total - 5
e {31st March, 2018 Quarterly Rs 8,600,000
o loan-4 Rs.Nil ) (Quistanding 4) (i) Last amount of principal
instaliment - Rs 600,000
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TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
“Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

' (Al in Rupees, unl otherwise stated)
Note:
Nature of security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings (other than debentures) (contd):
Name of Bank/ Repayment :
Financial Institution Loan Amount Schadule Instaliment Amount Security
Rs. 278,43,535
ICIC| Bank - e - ;
oo g (31st March, Monthly M T N Secured against Office Building at Salt Lake, Sector V. Kolkata.
2018:Rs.302.76,454) .
ICICI Bank - Rs. Nil Equated Monthly Installments (EMI) - :
Vehicle term loan-1 (31st March, Monthly Rs 143,833, Secured against hypothecation of Vehicles.
2018:Rs.1,111,804) Repaid fully during the year.
ICICI Bank - Rs. Nil Equated Monthly Installments (EMI) -
Vehicle term loan2 (31st March, Monthly Rs 143,833 Secured against hypothecation of vehicles.
2018:Rs.1,111,804) Repaid fully during the year.
Toyoto Financial
; # Rs. 843,768
S Indi 3 o
Pﬁ::ecf_ism?te: ¢ (31st March, Monthly Saisiad Mon:;yalgsst:gmems (EMI) Secured against hypothecation of vehicles.
e A 2018:Rs.1,155,829)
As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
L]
= Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation 42,152,779 39,661,717
Deferred Tax Assets
Others 621,434 -
41,531,345 39,661,717
As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
7 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Security Deposits 625,000 702,388
625,000 702,388
As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
8 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
SECURED
‘ Working Capital Loans repayable on Demand from Banks 135,280,291 180,881,399
L UNSECURED
- 2,200,000 {March 31, 2018: Nil) Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 220,000,000 -
355,280,291 180,881,399

Note:
A. Cash Credit facilities from Bank:

Cash Credit and Waorking Capital facilities are secured by way of pari passu first hypothecation charge created over the:

(i) Entire current assets and movable fixed assets of the Company, both present and future, except exclusively financed by other Banks/Financial Institutions.

(i) Factory land and buildings at Domjur, Kasba, Sankrail and Office Building at Jasmine Tower, Kolkata.

The above facilities are also secured by way of lien over Fixed Deposits of Rs 4,000,000 and personal guarantee of Mr. Sanjive Sehgal and Mr. Rohan Sehgal

B. Terms of conversion for compulsorily convertible debentures

The Company has issued 2,200,000 Compulsorily Convertible Debentures(CCDs) of Rs.100 each on 27th July 2018. These CCDs are convertible into equity
shares on any date within 3 years from the date of allotment of CCDs. Conversion price shall be higher of Rs.13,733.69 or the fair market value at the time of

conversion into equity shares.




. . TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

9 TRADE PAYABLES

Total Qutstanding Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
(Refer Note (i) below)

(b) Total Qutstanding Dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and
Small Enterprises

(a)

Note:

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As at

31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

39,020,327

47 225,847

39,020,327

47,225,847

(1) Based on the information / documents available with the Company, no creditors are covered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
As a result, no interest provision / payments have been made by the Company to said creditors and no disclosures thereof are made in these financial statements.

10 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES h

Current Maturities of Long Term Secured Debts (Refer Note 5 and Note 42)
Current Maturities of Unsecured Debts (Refer Note 5)

. Interest Accrued but not Due on Borrowings

Statutory Dues including Provident Fund and Tax Deducted at Source

Advances from Customers

11 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for Employee Benefits (Refer Note 35)

Provision for gratuity

Other Provisions
Provision For Income Tax (Net of Tax Deducted at Source and Advance Tax:
Rs.588,815,438) (31st March, 2018: Rs. 417,995,257)

As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
94,764,535 101,354,629
- 219,104,706
13,046,585 -
21,299,174 18,917 586
596,248 3,776,324
129,706,542 343,153,245
As at As at

31st March, 2019

31st March, 2018

5,171,330 -
3,060,628 7,556,252
8,231,958 7,556,252




juawaafie ay u sassa) ey &1 Auedwo? sy aram Kupdwos i jo Aweu Ay
U w1 uawinasBe asea) pue) a pue) uo sBupng p: s jo dosd jo 1padsarly “Auedwod au jo Swiey 3u) U PIRY 2 PloYaal 218 yanm Buippng pur pur) jo Bursudwos sasadoid aigeAcIL Au) R jo Spaap aml| ¢
“Auedwos ay Aq kwnoas se patesayodAy wawdinb3 § el Auadoig uo uoeLIjU 10) § S1ON 0] BJEY 7
sieak soud u wawdinba  ued ‘Auadod wepa0 jo BuidnoBaiuonrayssepa) ) ¢ 10N BJIY |

moN
£96'598'0F ’ g £96'598'0F ssaifold-u-o euded
BLOZEO'LE L10Z¥0'10
e sy . Py i 1® sy woparen
¥EL'02¥'50L 696 166 ¥S 21Z'1£9'001 9FE'9L5'ES ssaiBoig-u-yiop mepded
BLOZ'TO'LE {zy moN 1004} BL0Z'¥0°10
il pasijendes pEi iy suomppy = uenduasaq
SSIUO0HD NI ¥HOM W1IdvD (8Z1
8LB'9LY 06L 848'9.1'06L S08'2ZY'10E"L $ 089'F94°ZEL SZL'TITE9L'L ER9'P06'LE0'Z < = LEO'ELE'ELT 85166 LIE'L €10y
ZiSvrK zis'ver'e gzv'1zzol 2 S00'L06'Z izvoze s BEA'LLOSL . p - 966 1L9°91 SAONAA,
£02'082'1 £0z'082'L »3G'8PY'D s ££8'958 16L'168'G 199'82L'L ; v PLY'060') £6E'8E0 9 1ainduiog
¥96'959'C ¥96'089'c £28'L18'62 ; 08E'BLL' | £orecl vz 18L'VIB'RT 50812 CHZ'¥6L'9T swawdinb3 a0
010'EL8' PP OLO'ELE'FHZ £66'E51'699 - £51'909'LG OFZ L5 16S £00'290'¥68 E - $21ESE8E BLB'TILSSE spnop
0SE'BLIZIE 0st'sli'zIe 9Z1'¥9L'90§ - z8LCHI '8 PE020' Lhy 910've8'818 . £64'661'6Z1 €82 ¥29'C69 Kmumpew 3 neg
Z0L'29€°202 z0L'29¢'202 €L1'GIS'E0L = Le'olL'ol 962 ¥¥L'Z6 GL9'128'508 = - 951'880'CS 612'882'282 sBuppng
PO6'SIS Y 96'915'y - . s . YO8'GIG'Y r $96'G1G'Y ployasea
ELEPRIG) ELVFEL'SL - . . . civel'st . . £1L'vRI'SL PIOuDRLY
puw)
s1955Y 9jqibue
LI0Z €0 LE 20Z°C0'LT BLOZTO'LE [T LL0Z¥0°L0 [ LL0T L0
" 8y ® sy * sy b g s o Jod e sy e sy ¢ St i sy a
H20iE 12N g di ¥20|g 55040
.
BLB'OLY 06L §69'629'6P8 266100711 (9z9'c00's) - 2U8'LE'SPL S08'2Z¢'LOE'L 2691651627 (ovs'120'2) (£12'ven's0t) 996'6L0'F1C ©89'$06'L60'Z [T
IS YYD oLz'is's ¥eZ'Ezr'e (929'c90's) 7 66521 92y L2201 ¥05'089'6 {ov2'129'0) 3 orZ'0e9 @66'1.991 SAMBA
0z o8z 1 s£0'z20's sor'zez’L g rLeeL $99'8r¥'9 v'voc's 085615 198820 L sanduiod)
¥96'959'C szc'0re B0L18L'S 4 (025'058'61) SSE8IE f2ZeLEse vev'izre y (s28'059'c2) ZIvEON' | 18171682 swawdnb3 a0
619'092'7 \Zrlav'or 2 0.5'058'61 151'929 5 00V L8172 ZI0'Z5L'12 88E'586 g SANENL) T BTN
OLO'ELE Ph2 szi'Lig'ose ESE'9PE'LLL - ¢ 096 26020 T66'E51 670 6L0'F9E'Z86 ¥ 9.0'L6Z 88 £00'£90'¥68 Spinow
0SE'EL ZIE B12'597'682 LIS S96 66650 921'¥aL'90% 626'610'298 (1ZZ'955'c) PID'Z699Y 9.0'¥R8'818 Kaunpep ¥ eid
201'29¢ 202 E¥i'osezel S0 L1 181 ; . T80 L0R'E) TLISI5E01 661'489'652 - (gar'aLs 101} 10658158 628'L28'50E sBuppng
PIE'SIS Y BLZZIE'Y orLTsl : . oLTSH = PO6'SLE'Y . = ¥96'SIS'Y Proyesea
ELVPEISE STL¥EY'IEL . - > . 9LL'vEY'SEL . - £Z90IE0ZL CLL'vRLSL pioyaniy
puey
siassy ajqibue |
BL0ZE0 IE 6LOZ EO LT 8L0Z°C0'LE Tzv 21001 Jea BLOZ¥0'L0 BLOZEOLE (zy mon] BL0Z¥0°10
1 5y " sy ® sy g swaunsnipy 104 w sy ® sy s swsunsnipy F— * 5y uonduasag
12018 19N uonerdaidag ¥301g $3019
s13s5Y 318oNYL vizi

(pmErs asmaio ssapun ‘saadny u sunowe jjy)
, 6H0Z LE Y2IeY papua Jeak ay) J0j SIUAWSIEG [BIDUBULY ) 0} SHION
QILINM FLVAING S10N00Yd SNOSHY L




‘TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

13 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Trade Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)
In Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company [Refer Note (i) below]

74,950 Equity shares of USD 10 each of Tarsons Incorporated USA

Less: Provision For Diminution in the value of Investments

Trade Investments (Valued at Cost)

(a)
(D)
©)
d)

Aggregate Amount of Quoted Investments

Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investments

Aggregate Provision for Diminution in Value of Investments
Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As at
31st March, 2019

45,051,000
(45,051,000)

45,051,000
45,051,000

As at

31st March, 2018

45,051,000
(45,051,000)

45,051,000
45,051,000

(i) Investment in subsidiary are fully provided since the company got dissolved under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware in the previous financial year.

Accordingly, preparation of consolidated financial statement is not applicable.

14 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured and Considered Good, unless otherwise stated)

Capital Advances
Security Deposits

15 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

Long Term Deposits with Banks with Maturity Period More Than 12
Months*

*Held as margin money against Bank Guarantee & Borrowings

16 INVENTORIES
(At Lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value)

Raw Materials
Components

' Work-In-Progress
Fimished Goods
Stock in Trade
Packing Materials

Consumable Stores
Scrap

17 TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Unsecured and Considered Good)
Outstanding for a Period Exceeding Six Months from the Date they
are Due for Payment

Others

(Unsecured and Considered Doubtful)
Qutstanding for a Period Exceeding Six Months from the Date they
are Due for Payment

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts

As at
31st March, 2019

158,134,105
18,930,152
177,064,257

—_——

As at
31st March, 2019

3,323,000
3,323,000

As at
31st March, 2019

87,181,983
19,148,942
1,782,752
245,698,234
71,950,636
6,743,829
1,663,561
1,405,236
435,575,173

As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

131425811
18,962,003

150,387 814

As at
31st March, 2018

A

As at
31st March, 2018

58,520,021
20,594,348
6,014,875
218,031,931
70.656.034
10,008,522
453449
1,051,156

385,330,336

As at
31st March, 2018

11,519,957

486,794,926

2,718,439

(2,718,439)

498,314,883
——

15,029.011
440,122,167
2,718439
(2,718,439)
455,151,178




A TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash-in-Hand
Bank Balances
In Current Accounts

Other Bank Balances
In Fixed Depasit Accounts*

“Held as margin money against Borowings

19 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

[0 and Consid Good)
Advanca to Suppliers for Goods & Services
Income Receivables (Refer Note 42)

. Other Advances

(1] and Ci d D )
Loan to wholly owned subsidiary, Tarsons Incarparated - USA (Interest free)
Less: Provision For Doubtful Loans & Advances

20 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Ut d and Considered Good, unless otherwise states)

Accrued Interest on deposits
Expart Benefit Receivable
Balances with Goverment Authorities

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
99,554 299,112
4,968,920 9,438,343
3,230,000 8,579,335
8,298,474 18,314,790
As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
32,397,860 37,997,698
= 4,117,062
1,601,392 2622375
27,506,400 27,508,400
(27,506,400) (27,508,400)
33,999,252 44,737,135
— —_—
As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
3,511,325 -
15,298,999 -
2,057,139 5,398,782
20,867,463 5,398,782
- _—




\TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
21  REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Products (Gross)
Manufactured Goods (Refer Naote 21 1) 1,830,979,100 1,487,149 605
Less: Excise Duty £ 18,781,065
Sale of Products (Net) 1,830,979,100 1,468,368,540
Other Operating Revenue
Sale of Scrap (Refer Note 42) 10,697,959 10,390,805
Profit / (Loss) on Sale Of Raw Materials 114,376 (2,911)
Export Benefit Entitlements 44,140,762 3,879,672
54,953,096 14,267,566
1,885,932,196 1,482,636,106
Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
21.1  PARTICULARS OF SALE OF PRODUCTS
Details of Sales (Manufactured Goods)
Plastic Products 1,466,952,197 1,187,812,522
. Instruments & Equipments 97,772,374 86,622,456
1,564,724,571 1,274,435,018
Details of Sales (Traded Goods)
Plastic Products 218,743,373 173,536,892
instruments & Equipments 47,511,156 39,177,695
266,254,529 212,714,587
1,830,979,100 1,487,149,605
Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
22 OTHER INCOME
Fareign Exchange Fluctuation (Net) 8,871,518 8,858,774
interest on Deposits 1,564,233 1,515,193
Insurance Claim - 317,898
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 195,500 -
Interest on Income Tax Refund 690,566 -
Liability no Longer Required Written Back 2,501,776 -
Miscellaneous Income 1,747,001
15,570,594 10,691,865




TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

23 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Plastic Granules Consumed
Compenents Consumed

231 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED DURING THE YEAR

Inventones at the Beginning of the Year
Agd: Purchases (net)

Less Cost of Matenals Sold

Less: Inventory at the End of the Year

Cost of Materials Consumed During the Year

24 PURCHASES OF STOCK IN TRADE

Plastic Products and Instruments

25 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-
PROGRESS, TRADED GOODS AND SCRAP (Refer note 42)

Inventories at the Beginning of the Year:

Finished Goods
Work-in-Progress
Stock in Trade

Scrap (Refer Note 42)
Total (A}

Inventories at the End of the Year:

Firnished Goods
Work-in-Progress
Stock in Trade

Scrap (Refer Note 42)
Total (B)

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2018

Excise Duty on Increase / (Decrease) of Finished Goods (Refer Note 42) (C) -

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (A-B-C)

369,061,512 276,987 931
51,347,586 44,480,181
420,409,098 321,468,172
Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2019
79,114,369 105,196,862
449,546,439 295,580,178
1,920,785 194,499
106,330,925 79,114,369
420,409,098 321,468,172
Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
141,499,977 132,518,828
141,499,977 132,518,828
Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
218,031,931 190,465,895
8,014,875 893,861
70,656,034 83,061,487
1,051,156 2
295,753,996 274,421,223
245,698,234 218,031,931 .
1,782,752 6,014,875
71,950,636 70,656,034
1,405,236 -
320,836,858 294 702 B40
23,659, 804
(25,082,862) (43,941,421)




TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries. Wages and Bonus etc. (Refer Nate 42) 148,800,411 75,024 959
Contribution to Providant and Other Funds (Refer Note 35) 12,916,688 8,978,552
Staff Welfare Expenses (Refer Note 42) 4,517 24 BB3,382
161,721,616 108,866,893
i. Salanes, Wages and Bonus includes payment to Directors - Rs 45,599,864 (Pravious year: Rs 14,400,000)
ii. Contribution to Provident and Other Funds includes of Rs.2,686,330 for Grauity of pror penods.
Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
FINANCE COST
(a) Interest Expenses
i} Interest Expense 67,611,141 80,499 490
ii) Interest-Others 4,427,623 301,899
(b) Other Borrowing Costs
Borrowing Cost 2,848,650 d
74,887,414 80,801,389
Year ended Year ended

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES

Year ended

31st March, 2019

31st March, 2019

Year ended

31st March, 2018

31st March, 2018

Depreciation on Tangible Assets (Refer Note 12 A) 145,637,818 132,164,680
145,637,818 132,164,680
Year ended Year ended

29 OTHER EXPENSES (Refer Note 42)

31st March, 2019

__31stMarch, 2018 _

Consumption of Packing Matenals 107,040,400 ©3,984,370
Consumption of Consumable Stores 7,472,038 5,921,389
Assembly and Sterilisation Charges 28,518,045 21,185,166
Power and Fuel 67,810,444 74,304,910
Freight & Forwarding 49,012,723 43,574,013
Sales Promotion Expenses 39,220,885 22,360,547
Auditors' Remuneration [Refer Note 29(a)} 1,350,000 900,000
Insurance 5,433,682 4,071,320
Rent 1,758,613 1,402 257
Rates and Taxes 3,859,164 6,292 922
Goods and Service Tax - 184,291
Repairs
To Plant & Machinery 15,571,703 16,335,050
To Moulds 4,253,569 2,637,317
To Buildings 3,077,763 4,584 142
Tao Others 1,928,359 4,046 621
Travelling and Conveyance 20,330,226 17,717,831
Donation 117,000 191,350
Professional Fees 34,955,785 12,428,620
Consultancy for Sales - 9,679,207
Expenditure Towards CSR Activities (Refer Note 41) 5,568,494 3,977,819
Provision For Diminution in the Value of Investment - 45,051,000
Provision For Doubtful Loans & Advances - 27 508 400
Miscellanecus Expenses 18,754,301 20,335 470
416,033,194 443,672,072
Year ended Year ended

29 (a) PAYMENT TO AUDITORS AS :

_31st March, 2019

31st March, 2018

Statutory Audit Fees 1,200,000 700,000

Tax Audit Fees 150,000 200,000

Cut of Pocket Expenses = =
1,350,000 800,000




TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

30 TAX EXPENSE

Current Tax

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2018

Income Tax for Current Year 165,231,260 140,459,530
Add: Income Tax For earlier years 585,260 .
165,816,520 140,459,530
Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax Charges / (Credit) 1,869,628 (11.889,684)
167,686,148 128,569,846
31 DETAILS OF RAW MATERIAL AND COMPONENTS, PACKING MATERIAL AND CONSUMABLE STORES CONSUMPTION:
Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Amount % Consumed Amount % Consumed
RAW MATERIAL AND COMPONENTS:
Imported 354,817,002 B84% 249,850,985 78%
Indigenous 65,592,096 16% 71817187 22%
PACKING MATERIALS:
Imported 1,378,463 1% 3.010.570 3%
Indigenous 105,661,937 99% 95,973,800 97%
STORES AND SPARES
Imported 4,871,536 65% 2,737,679 46%
Indigenous 2,600,502 35% 3,183,710 54%
32 VALUE OF IMPORTS ON CIF BASIS IN RESPECT OF :
Year ended Year ended

Raw Matenals & Bought Qut Components
Packing Materials

Consumable Stores

Capital Goods

Stock in Trade

Spare Parts

Product Development

33 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

31st March, 2019

31st March, 2018

349,011,853
1,378,463
5,339,701

145,728,761

103,030,225
9,932,920

206,596,525
2,498,959
2,965,337

108,812,219

80,656,972
9.704 888
713,036

The calculation of Eamings per share (EPS) as disclosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss has been made in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) - 20 on

“Earnings per Share” as issued by the Institute of Charterad Accounts of India

(i) Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss Attributable to
Equity Shareholders

(if) Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding during the
Year (Nos)

(i) Face Value per Equity Share

(iv) Basic Eamings per Equity Share

(v) Diluted Eamings per Equity Share

Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2018

398,710,387
192,228
10.00

2,074.15
1,983.01

189,207 512
192,228
10.00

98429
984 29

Cansidering the CCDs would be converted at price which is higher of the Rs. 13,733 69 or the fair market value on the conversion date, diluted eamings per share

as at March 31, 2018 have been determined using Rs. 13,733 69 baing the floor price for conversion

34 EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE

F.O 8. Value of Exports

35 EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE

General Expenses

Traveling

Sales Promation
Consultancy Charges
Professional Service charges
Product Development

Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2018

508,136,074

Year ended
31st March, 2019

382297 238

Year ended
31st March, 2018

2,294,683
4,258,960
10,762,993

1,358,520

348277
1,506,764
2,948,130
9,679,207

255,191



¢ ' TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
36 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a) Defined Contribution Plans

The Company makes Prowident Fund contributions ta defined contribution plans for quaifying employees. Under the scheme, the Company is required to
contribute a specified percantage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified

in the rules of the schemes.
Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
i) Contribution to Provident Fund * 5,290,153 4,302 781
5,290,153 4,302,781.00

(*) recognised under ‘Contribution to Provident and Other Funds’ in Note 26

(b) Defined Benefit Plan

The Company provides for gratuity, 3 defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. As per scheme, the Gratuity Trust fund managed by the
Trust, makes payment to vasted employees on . death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective
emptoyae‘seug'blesaary{rwmonlh'ssalyy)r.lependngupanIhetam.raolmmeutoammseﬂmaxmmlmaufamoumpwabhmpmmt
ol'GrautyAcl.Lmbi&ﬁaswtthragard!orheemmtypianndmsrmmedbyacumsvalueaonassetomnnotazﬂbaseauponumm.msCumpany

makes contribution to the Gratuity fund

As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
. (i} Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation
Balance at the Beginning of the Year 15,384,690 76818210
Cument Service Cost 1,814,790 1,868,520
Interest Cost 1,154,090 578,830
Actuarial (Gains) / Losses 261,040 5220130
Benefits Paid (398,500) .
Balance at the End of the Year 18,216,110 15,384,590
As at As at

(i) Fair Value of Plan Assets

31st March, 2019

31st March, 2018

Balance at the Beginning of the Year 10,015,640 7,616,210
Expected Return on Pian Assets 838,000 639,810
Actuarial Gains / (Losses) (112,060) (69,460)
Contribution by the Company 2,701,690 1,829,080
Benefits paid (398,500) -
Balance at the End of the Year 13,044,780 10,015,640

The expected rate of retum on assets is determined based on the assessment made at the beginning of the year on the retum expected on its
existing portfolio, along with the astimated increment to the plan assets and expected yield on the respective assets in the portfolio dunng the year

(iil) Assets and Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet

As at

31st March, 2019

As at

31st March, 2018

Prasent Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 18,216,110 15,384 690
Less: Fair Value of Plan Assets 13,044,780 10,015 640
Amounts Recognised as Liability 5,171,330 5,369 050

Recognised Under:
Short Term Provision (Refer Note 11)

5,171,330




TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Al nts in Rup otherwise stated)

(iv)

{v)

(vi)

Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss*
Current Service Cost
Interest Cost
Expected Retum on Plan Assets
Actuanal Gans / (Losses)
Total Expense

(*) recognised under ‘Contribution to Provident and Other Funds' in Note 26.

Plan assets for gratuity is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India

Actual Return on Plan Assets

(vii) Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate

Expected Retum on Plan Assets
Salary Growth Rate

Mortality Rate

Attrition Rate

Year ended

31st March, 2019

1,814,790
1,154,090
(838.000)
373,090
2,503,970

Year ended

31st March, 2019

725,950

Year ended

31st March, 2019

7.60%
7.50%
8.00%

IALM 06-08 Ultimate

5.00%

Year ended

31st March, 2018

1,069,520
578,830
(539,810)
5,289,530
7,198,130

Year ended
31st March, 2018

570,350

Year ended

31st March, 2018

7.60%
7.50%
8.00%

|ALM 06-08
Ulimate

5.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account, inflation, seniority, promotions and other relevant

factors. such as demand and supply in the employment market

(viii) Expected Contribution to the Funds in the next year

(ix)

a)
b
c)
d)
e)

Year ended

31st March, 2019

Gratuity 5,171,330
The above disclosuras has been given to the extent information is available with the Company
Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018

Other Disclosures

Present value of obligation at end of the year 18,216,110 15,384 680
Fair value of Plan Assets as at end of the year (13,044,780) (10,015,640)
(Surplus)/Deficit as at the end of the year 5,171,330 5,369,050
Experience Adjustment an Plan Obligation [(Gain)/Loss] 261,040 5,220,130
Experience Adjustments on Plan Assets [(Gain)/Loss] 112,050 69,460

The above disclosures has baen given to the extent information is available with the Company

Year ended

31st March, 2018

Year ended

31st March, 2017

7,616,210
(7,616,210)




TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED .
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
37 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(a) Names of related parties and nature of relationship:

(i) Where control exists
Tarsons Inc., USA (Subsidiary Company)

(ii) Other Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Key Management Personnel:
Mr Sanjive Sehgal. Whale Time Director
Mr Sachin Sehgal (till 26th July, 2018)
Mr Rohan Sehgal, Whole Time Director

Relatives of Key Management Personnel:
Mr Vinod Kumar Sehgal (Father of Mr. Sachin Sehgal)
Ms Jyoti Sehgal (Mother of Mr. Sachin Sehgal)
Ms Pooja Sehgal (Wife of Mr. Sachin Sehgal)
Ms Shaloo Mehra (Sister of Mr. Sachin Sehgal)
Ms Neeta Arora (Sister of Mr. Sanjive Sehgal)

Investment party in respect of which Company is an Associate

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Clear Vision Investment Holdings Pte Limited, Singapore (with effect from 26 July, 2018)

Individual exercising significant influence over the Company
Mr Rohan Sehgal, Whole Time Director

Enterprise over which key management personnal execise significant influence

M/s Tarsons Products (Upto 26 July, 2018)
M/s Durga Plastic (Upto 26 July, 2018)

M/s V. K.Sehgal & Sons (HUF) [Grouped under Relatives of Key Management Personnel in Previous Year] (Upto 26 July, 2018)
M/s S K.Sehgal & Sons (HUF) [Grouped under Relatives of Key Management Persannel in Previous Year] (Upto 26 July, 2018)

(ii) Transactions with Related Parties

Key Management Personnel
Managerial Remuneration Paid
Interest Paid
Repayment of Loan
Loan Received
Rent Paid

Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Interest Paid
Rent Paid
Repayment of Loan
Loan Received

Enterprise over which key management personnal exercise significant influence

Interest Paid

Loan Received

Repayment of Loan

Purchases of Finished Goods & Raw Material
Sales of Raw Materials

Purchase of Capital Goods

Labour Charges Paid

Investment party in respect of which Company is an Associate
Issue of Compulsory Convertible Debenture
Interest on Compulsory Convertible Debenture

Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
45,599,664 14,400,000
2,756,424 9,625,828
90,124,267 27,947,231
215,295 16,930
101,575 12,600
3,182,499 11,859,563
21,575 6,300
102,083,044 7,785,115
- 7.267,707
868,407 -
600,000 -
27,712,690 -
- 2,085,299
- 201,167
- 100,000
- 56,260

220,000,000 -
20,098,356 -




TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
(iii) Outstanding Balances Receivable/(Payable) )
Key Management Personnel
Unsecured Loans - 89,908,972
Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Unsecured Loans - 129,195,734
Subsidiary Company
Investments in Subsidiary 45,051,000 -
Loan to Subsidiary 27,506,400 27,506,400
Trade Receivable 2,718,439 2,718,439
Provision For Diminution in the value of Investments (45,051,000) -
Provision For doubtful loans (27,506,400) -
Provision For doubtful advances (2,718,439) -
Investment party in respect of which Company is an Associate
Compulsory Convertible Debenture 220,000,000 -
Interest accrued but not due on Compulsory Convertible Debenture 10,556,534
38 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
(i) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(a) Claims Against the Company not Acknowledged as Debts
(i) Sales Tax & Value Added Tax matters under dispute - 435,139
(ii) Excise Duty & Service Tax matters under dispute 13,431,072 5,688,939

In respect of above, pending resolution of the proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any.
The Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of the above contingent liabilities

(b) The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of the recent Supreme Court Judgment in case of "Vivekananda Vidyamandir And
Others Vs The Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (I1) West Bengal” and the related circular (Circular No. C-1/1(33)2019/Vivekananda Vidya
Mandir/284) dated March 20, 2019 issued by the Employees’ Provident Fund Organisation in relation to non-exclusion of certain allowances from
the definition of "basic wages" of the relevant employees for the purposes of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees’
Provident Funds & Miscellanecus Provisions Act, 1952. In the assessment of the management, the aforesaid matter is not likely to have a
significant impact and accordingly, no provision has been made in these Financial Statements.

As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
(ii) CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account and not 167,227,803 53,883,891

provided for (Net of Advances of Rs. 158,134,106, 31st March, 2018: Rs. 131,425,811)




TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

39 The Company's operations are predominantly manufacture of Plastic Products & Instruments. The Company is managed organisationally as a unified
entity and according to the management this is a single segment Company as envisaged in Accounting Standard (AS 17)- Segment Reporting.

As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
INR Equivaint of INR Equivaint of
uso EUR usoD EUR
40 DETAILS OF UNHEDGED FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE:-
Investment in Subsidiary [Refer Note (i) below] = - 45,051,000 -
Loan to Subsidiary [Refer Note (i) below] - - 27,506,400 -
Trade Receivables 100,412,460 38,834 040 85,592 164 31,480,461
100,412,460 38,834,040 158,149,564 31,480,461
Trade Payables 8,833,051 1,729 446 9,987,303 2,964,502
8,833,051 1,729,446 9!987|303 2!954!502
(i) Investment in subsidiary and loan given to subsidiary are fully provided since the company got dissolved under the General Corporation Law of the
State of Delaware.
. Year ended Year ended

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018

41 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENDITURE:

Expenditure Related to Corporate Social Responsibility as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII there of:

(a) Gross Amount Required lo be Spent by the Company during the Year 6,052,210 3,977,819
(b) Amount Spent during the Year on:
(i) Construction/ Acquisition of any Asset - 3,977,819
(i) On purposes other than (i) above
- In Cash 5,568,494 -

- Yet to be paid in Cash X £




TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

42 CLASSIFICATION/GROUPING OF CERTAIN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS LINE ITEMS IN THE PRIOR YEARS

Note 42(a): R ification/regrouping of Bal. Sheet
Particulars Notes to Accounts Audited Figures Adit Regrouped Figures
31.03.2018 31.03.2018
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets 42(a)i) 790,478,878 (108,831,217) 683,645,661
Capital Work in Progress 42(e)(i) - 106,831,217 106,831,217
790,476,878 - 790,476,878
CURRENT ASSETS
Short Term Loans and Advances 42(a)(iii) 44,737,135 (4,117,062) 40,620,073
Other Current Assets 42(e)(i) 5,388,782 4,117,062 9,515,844
Total 50,135,917 - 50,135,917
Note 42(b): Reclassificati grouping of St of Profit and Loss
Parliculars Notes to A Audited Figures T Regrouped Figures
31.03.2018 31.03.2018
INCOME
Revenue from Operations (Gross) 42(e)iv), 42(e)(v). 1,487,149,605 13,825,535 1,500,975,140
Less: Excise Duty (18,781,085) - (18,781,085)
Other Operating Revenue 42(e)(iv) 14,267 566 (14,267 566) -
1,482,636,106 (442,031) 1,482,194,075
EXPENDITURE
Changes in Inventaries of Finished Geods and :
Wo':gin Progress 42(e)(v), 42(a)vi) (43,941,421) 23217773 (20,723 ,648)
Other Expenses 42(@)(vi) 443 872,072 (23,659,804) 420,012,268
399,730,851 (442,031) 399,288,620
Impact on Profit -
Note 42(c): Reclassification/regrouping of Notes to Accounts
Particulars Notes to A Fig Adju SN Ty
[T 31.03.2018 31.03.2018
T | A
Buildings - Gross Block 42(e)(i) 305,877,875 (101,376,183) 204 501,692
305,877,875 (101,376,183) 204,501,692
Plant & Machinary - Gross Block 42(e)i) 818,884,076 (3,556,221) 815,327,855
818,884,076 (3,556,221) 815,327,855
Fumiture & Fixtures - Gross Block 42(e)(i) 21,752,012 21,752,012
- 21,752,012 21,752,012
Office Equipments - Gross Block 42(e)i), 42(e)(i) 28,974,787 (23,650,825) 5,323,962
28,974,787 (23,650, 5,323,962
Office Equipments - Accumulated Depreciation 42(e)(n) 25,317,823 (19,850,570) 5,487,253
25,317,823 (19,850,570) 5,467,253
Furniture & Fixtures - Accumulated Depreciation 42(e)ii) 19,850,570 19.850‘5':'_9_
19,850,570 19,850,570
CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
Capital work in progress 42(e)(1) - 106,831,217 106,831,217
3 106,831,217 106,831,217
SECURED
Term Loan
From Banks
Rupee Loans 42(e)(vii), 42(a)(viil) 357 814 094 (4,307.798) 353,308 296
Less: Current Maturities of Long Term Debt 42(e)(vii), 42(e){vin) (101,354 ,629) 3,464,030 (97 .890,598)
256,259,465 (843,768) 255,415,697
From Others
Rupee Loans 42(e)(vii) - 1,155,829 1,155,829
Less: Current Maturities of Long Term Debt 42(e)(vii) - (312,061) (312,061)
B 843,768 843,768
256,259,465 - 256,259,465




TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes to Accounts Audited Figures |, yiustments Fgraliped Figomee
31.03.2018 31.03.2018
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current Maturities of Long Term Debts 42(a)(vil), 42(e){wii) 101,354,629 (3,151,970) 98,202,659
Interest Accrued and not Due on Borrowings 42(e)vii), 42()(viii) - 3,151,870 3,151,970
101,354,629 - 101,354,629
SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Income receivables 42(e)(iii) 4117082 (4,117,062) -
4,117,062 {4,117,062) i
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Accrued interest on fixed deposits 42(e)(ii) 2,954,690 2,954,690
Export benefit receivables 42(e)(ii) - 1,162,372 1,162,372
4,117,062 4,117,062
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale Of Scrap 42(e)v) 10,390,805 (442,032) 9,948,773
10,390,805 (442,032) 9,948,773
CHANGES IN INVENTORY OF FINISHED GOODS,
WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND SCRAP
Inventories at the Beginning of the Year: (A}
s 1 809 124 609,124
Inventories at the End of the Year (8)

Scrap = 1,051,156 1,051,156
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (A-B) 42(a){v) - (442,032) (442,032)
Excise Duty on | /(D } of Fini d
Goods 42(e)(v) {23,659,804) 23,859,804 -

(23,659,804) 23,217,772 (442,032)
OTHER EXPENSES
gx;;z Duty on Increase / (Dacrease) of Finished a2(e)vi) (23.659,804) (23.659,804)
- (23,659,804) (23,659,804)
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries, Wages and Bonus etc. 42(e){ix) 75,024,959 24,058,842 99,083,901
Staff Welfare Expenses 4Z(e){ix) 24,863,382 (24,058.942) 804,440
99,888,341 - 99,888,341
Note 42(d): Classification/grouping of Cash and Cash Equivalent as per Statement of Cash Flows
Particulars Notes to Accounts pudited Elgtires Adj Regroupedligians
31.03.2018 31.03.2018
Cash and Cash Equivalent 42(2)(x) 15,954,790 (6,219,335) 9,735,455
15,954,790 (6,219,335) 9,735,455




TARSONS PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 42(e): Reasons for the classification/grouping as given in Note 42 (a) to 42 (¢)

42(e)(i) Fixed Assets - Tangible Assets and Capital Work in Progress

Cost incurred in construction of leasahoid buildings amounting to Rs 48,287 027, freencid buildings amounting 1o Rs 53,089,156, plant & machinery
amounting to Rs 3,556,221 and office equipments amounting to Rs. 1,898,813 were disclosed as additions 1o fixed assets in the audited financial
statements of previous financial years and accordingly were inciuded in the Tangible Assets as disclosed in FY 2015-18, FY 2018-17 and FY 2017-18.
However these assets are nat completed and were not put to use till the year ended March 31, 2018 Hence, the same shall be re-classified to capital
wark-in-progress as at March 31, 2018.

42(e)(ii) Tangible Assets
"Equipments” under Tangible Assets included Fumitures and Fixtures, bearing Gross Block of Rs 21,752,012, Accumulated Depreciation of Rs.
19,850,570 and Net Block of Rs. 1,801,442 The same shall be classified and presented separately as “Fumiture & Fixtures® under Tangible Assets.

42(e)iii) Short Term Loans and Advances and Other Current Assets

Accurent interest on deposits amounting to Rs 2,954,690 and Duty Drawback receivable amounting Rs 1,162.372 where grouped and disclosed under
the line item - ‘Short Term Loans and Advances' which shall be re-classified to line item - ‘Other Current Assets’

42(e)(iv) Revenue from Operations (Gross) and Other Operating Revenue
Other Operating Revenue of Rs 14,267 566 was disclosed in the Statement of Profit & Loss as a separate line item on the face of Statement of Profit and
Loss. The same shall be inciuded and presented under the line item "Revenue from Operations (Gross)” ?

42(e){v) Change in inventory of scrap and Other Operating Revenue

Changes in Inventones of Scrap of Rs 442 032 was included and presented under the line item Other Operating Revenue on the face of Statement af
Profit and Loss as well as in the note “Revenue from Operation”. The same shall be included under line item - ‘Changes in Inventory Of Finished Goods,
WQH;-Inn-qunssamlSaap'mhmdswmuﬁaﬁtamLmswwWHvamduparmntttenmtruma.

42(e){vi) Changes In Inventory Of Finished Goods and Work in Proge and Other Exp
"Excise Duty on Increase / (Decrease) of Finished Goods"” of Rs. 23653804 shall be re-classified and regrouped from “Changes in inventories of
Finished Goods and Work-in-Pragress” to line item "Other Expenses’

42(e){vii) Long Term Borrowings - Term Loan from Banks and Term Loan from Others

'Ttrmmewus'and'cunarnmammsofm\gmmm‘mmmwmﬂmrmﬁﬁe&hkmkomumamunﬁnqtnRs
1,155,829 and Rs 312,061 respectively. The same shall be classified and presented separately n the notes to the financial statements.

42(e){viil) Long Term Borrowings - Term Loan from Banks and Interest Accrued but not due

“Interest Accrued and not Due on Borrowings” amonting to Rs 3,151,970 was included both in the "Term loans from banks” and "Current Maturities of
Long term secured debts”. The same shall be classified and presented under "Other Current Liabilites” as a separate line item.

42{e){ix) Employee Benefits Expense
HRA, LTA, Specal allowances, Conveyance Allowance and Medical Allowance amounting to Rs 24,058,942 were included under Staff Welfare
Expenses. The same shall be classified and included under Salaries, Wages and Bonus etc.

42(e)(x) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Fixed deposits with maturity of more than three months amounting to Rs 5,219,335 was included under Cash and Cash Equivalents as disclosed in the
Statement of Cash Flow. The same shall be classified and presented under bank balances

This is the Notes to the Financial Statements refermed to in our report of even date
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